
This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Johannes Gnann, Stefan Jungcurt, Ph.D., Tallash Kantai, Dorothy Wanja Nyingi, 
Ph.D., Eugenia Recio, and Liz Willetts. The Digital Editor is Francis Dejon. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting 
Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United Kingdom (through the Department for International 
Development – DFID), the Government of the United States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans and International Environmental and Scientific 
Affairs), the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development 
(BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European 
Commission (DG-ENV), and the Italian Ministry for the Environment, Land and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2010 is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of 
Foreign Affairs, the Government of Australia, the Austrian Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of Environment of 
Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign 
Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry 
(through the Global Industrial and Social Progress Research Institute - GISPRI), the Government of Iceland, the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP), and the 
World Bank. Funding for translation of the Bulletin into French has been provided by the Government of France, the Belgium Walloon Region, the Province of Québec, and 
the International Organization of the Francophone (OIF and IEPF). Funding for translation of the Bulletin into Spanish has been provided by the Spanish Ministry of the 
Environment and Rural and Marine Affairs. The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. 
Excerpts from the Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide 
reporting services, contact the Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11D, New York, New York 10022, United 
States of America. The ENB team at COP/MOP 5 can be contacted by e-mail at <stefan@iisd.org>.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Online at http://www.iisd.ca/biodiv/bs-copmop5/

COP/MOP 5
#4

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)Vol. 9 No. 531 Thursday, 14 October 2010

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

COP/MOP 5 HigHligHts: 
WEDNEsDAY, 13 OCtObEr 2010

COP/MOP 5 delegates met in a morning plenary to take stock 
of progress. In the afternoon, WG I considered draft decisions on 
the Compliance Committee, rights and/or obligations of parties 
of transit of LMOs, monitoring and reporting, assessment and 
review, and the Strategic Plan. WG II completed the first reading 
of public awareness, education and participation and of financial 
mechanisms and resources, and considered revised draft 
decisions on: the Biosafety Clearing-House (BCH), capacity 
building; and handling, transport, packaging and identification 
(HTPI) of LMOs for food feed and for processing (LMO-FFPs).  
Unless otherwise stated, draft decisions were approved as 
amended.

Plenary 
Delegates heard progress reports of the two WGs, the budget 

group and the legal drafting group on liability and redress. The 
REPUBLIC OF KOREA lauded the agreement on the draft 
supplementary protocol on liability and redress. 

COOPErAtiON WitH OtHEr OrgANiZAtiONs, 
CONVENtiONs AND iNitiAtiVEs: The EU, with 
CROATIA and TURKEY, called for cooperation, national 
communication and further coordination at the national and 
international level to ensure biosafety issues are addressed in a 
coherent manner. The AFRICAN UNION emphasized regional 
and international collaboration, noting that its Executive Council 
recently called for the development of national biosafety 
frameworks. The WASHINGTON BIOTECHNOLOGY 
ACTION COUNCIL recalled the relevance of the Codex 
Alimentarius to cooperation with other organizations.

Working grouP i 
COMPliANCE COMMittEE: Delegates approved the 

draft decision without amendment.
rigHts AND/Or ObligAtiONs OF PArtiEs OF 

trANsit OF lMOs: NEW ZEALAND, supported by 
KENYA and JAPAN, said the request for the Compliance 
Committee to address issues related to LMOs based on 
information from national reports was unnecessary as it will be 
addressed at COP/MOP 8.

MONitOriNg AND rEPOrtiNg: Delegates considered 
a draft decision on the format for the Second National Report. 
The AFRICAN GROUP raised concerns over the deletion of 
the timeframe to submit the reports, suggesting to postpone 

the deadline for submission from 2011 to 2012. The EU, 
with CROATIA and TURKEY, suggested an online forum for 
sharing best practices, advice and expertise. NEW ZEALAND, 
supported by MALAYSIA, said requesting the Executive 
Secretary to adjust the format of the third and subsequent 
national reports is premature and should be deferred to COP/
MOP 7.

The AFRICAN GROUP questioned the deletion of a section 
on financial mechanisms to which the Secretariat explained that 
these were already elaborated under capacity building. MEXICO 
requested that comments be allowed when reporting on the 
status of ratification and that a country’s capacity to detect and 
identify LMOs may be rated as intermediate. 

AssEssMENt AND rEViEW: Delegates considered 
a draft decision on the framework and methodology for the 
second assessment of the Protocol. The EU proposed to 
provide funds for external assistance to the Secretariat in 
collecting and compiling data and to perform the analysis of 
results at COP/MOP, rather than convening an AHTEG. The 
AFRICAN GROUP, supported by CUBA, preferred to convene 
an AHTEG, stressing that it should be regionally balanced. 
WG I Chair Stanič Racman proposed making the AHTEG 
subject to the availability of funds. The Public Research and 
Regulation Initiative (PRRI) proposed adding an indicator on 
changes in the use of pesticides, fertilizers, fossil fuels and soil 
erosion resulting from the introduction of genetically modified 
crops. MEXICO suggested measuring both the amount of 
funding for capacity-building activities and their “financial 
impact.” ARGENTINA preferred “inviting” to “urging” other 
governments and international organizations to contribute to data 
collection.

strAtEgiC PlAN AND MUlti-YEAr PrOgrAMME 
OF WOrK (MYPOW): Delegates considered a draft decision 
on the Strategic Plan (2011-2020) and the associated MYPOW 
of the COP/MOP. The EU, with TURKEY and CROATIA, 
suggested language concerning the prioritization of focal 
areas in provisions on interpretation and with regard to the 
financial resources for the implementation of the Strategic 
Plan. The AFRICAN GROUP suggested including reference 
to “capacity” in the mission of the Strategic Plan. Noting that 
many developing parties are facing difficulties in accessing GEF 
funds for biosafety matters, she proposed including reference 
to a biosafety fund which would be a special voluntary fund for 
parties that want to assist developing countries in implementing 
the Strategic Plan. 



Thursday, 14 october 2010   Vol. 9 no. 531  Page 2
earth negotiations Bulletin

 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

The EU, with TURKEY and CROATIA, suggested deleting 
reference to risk to human health in the vision section and 
stressed the need to update the Strategic Plan with other 
decisions taken at COP/MOP 5. Supported by NORWAY, she 
also suggested including reference to promoting cooperation 
on research and exchange of information on socio-economic 
impacts of LMOs. The AFRICAN GROUP disagreed with the 
EU proposal, as well as subsequent proposals for new wording 
on the operational objective on socio-economic considerations. 
MEXICO and other countries were concerned with streamlining 
the discussions on LMOs that may have, or are not likely to 
have, adverse impacts on the environment into the Strategic Plan.

Working grouP ii
PUbliC AWArENEss, EDUCAtiON AND 

PArtiCiPAtiON: Delegates continued considering UNEP/
CBD/BS/COP-MOP/5/13. IRAN suggested creating an 
effective public awareness mechanism, and highlighted the 
difficulties of translating biosafety materials into local languages. 
ARGENTINA called for effective monitoring by experts to curb 
the dissemination of false information. BANGLADESH reported 
that its national biosafety guidelines will be made publicly 
available through a national BCH. ECOROPA emphasized the 
need to involve “knowledgeable members of the public” in the 
creation of effective awareness campaigns. PRRI pointed out 
that the information about biosafety in the public domain has a 
negative bias, and supported biosafety education in schools.

FiNANCiAl MECHANisMs AND rEsOUrCEs: 
Delegates continued discussion based on UNEP/CBD/BS/
COP-MOP/5/5. JORDAN, the AFRICAN GROUP and other 
developing countries lamented that funding for biosafety 
activities through the GEF has been decreasing, and called 
for the establishment of a special voluntary fund on biosafety. 
SOUTH AFRICA said establishing a fund was premature, 
but supported the call for additional resources. The EU, with 
TURKEY and CROATIA, NORWAY, JAPAN and the US 
opposed the fund, with the EU and the US explaining that 
countries should prioritize national biosafety actions in order to 
increase the share of their funding allocation received through 
the GEF for biodiversity, which includes funding for biosafety. 
JAPAN offered in-kind contributions to biosafety projects.

bCH: Delegates discussed the draft decision on operation 
and activities of the BCH. MEXICO, with INDIA, asked that 
governments provide information only on “final decisions 
pertaining to LMOs.” The EU, with CROATIA and TURKEY, 
supported by INDIA, proposed that the Secretariat identify 
obstacles to using the BCH. He also requested that the 
Secretariat assist parties in submitting and retrieving information 
from the BCH and that online fora prioritize a common 
understanding on information sharing under the Protocol, as well 
as the types of risk assessment necessary for the BCH. MEXICO 
and UGANDA asked that the fora ensure a “minimal level of 
regionally-balanced participation.” IRAN offered to host an 
additional Asia-Pacific sub-regional workshop. 

CAPACitY bUilDiNg: status of capacity-building 
activities: On the revised draft decision, MEXICO proposed 
additional text on the timeline for the submission of prioritized 
needs to the BCH. Delegates agreed to delete text regarding a 
UNEP toolkit for evaluation of socio-economic assessments. 
After divergent interventions by the EU, with TURKEY and 
CROATIA, BOLIVIA, INDIA and others, parties agreed 
to reformulate text on the work of a proposed AHEG on 
cooperation and capacity building for research and information 
exchange with regard to socio-economic impacts of LMOs. 
The EU, with TURKEY and CROATIA, further added that the 

AHEG be created subject to the availability of funds. They 
also proposed additional text on the creation of an institutional 
framework to assess relevant information linked to LMOs. 

roster of biosafety Experts: On measures to facilitate the 
release of experts, SOUTH AFRICA said these should be taken 
“as appropriate.” On amending the expert nomination form, the 
AFRICAN GROUP suggested also including views submitted by 
parties.

HtPi: Experience gained with implementing Article 
18.2(a): BRAZIL asked to allow for countries to continue using 
existing systems to confirm that LMO-FFPs are not introduced 
into the environment. MEXICO suggested that such systems 
“prevent” introductions into the environment, rather than 
“confirm” that no introductions occur.

On the decision to postpone consideration of more detailed 
documentation requirements for shipments of LMO-FFPs, 
BOLIVIA requested adding reference to the consideration of 
the need for a stand-alone document. On submitting further 
information on experiences gained prior to COP/MOP 7, the 
EU, with CROATIA and TURKEY, suggested also submitting 
information on obstacles encountered in the implementation of 
documentation requirements, as well as any specific capacity-
building needs. 

standards: BOLIVIA proposed that the Executive Secretary 
also identify gaps in information available and gaps in 
existing standards, rather than merely follow the development 
of standards. IRAN proposed adding a request to parties to 
nominate national and international reference laboratories and 
establish an electronic network among them for sharing of 
information and experiences.

in The Corridors 
Attendees who had prepared themselves for a plenary 

showdown over the question of whether or not to convene the 
ABS negotiating group during COP/MOP were disappointed. 
While some delegates were still anxious about the scheduling in 
the morning, even those countries with small delegations agreed 
to negotiating ABS during the evenings. Perhaps onlookers have 
been recently conditioned to expect drama, given past procedural 
quarrels within the process.

The peaceful establishment of the ABS group may have been 
helped by the fact that many of the issues addressed by the 
COP/MOP are much less controversial than at past meetings. 
Many veterans of the process were heard wondering “where 
is the circus?” And, with far less attendees that expected for 
the COP/MOP, others were asking “where are the crowds?” 
One delegate interpreted this as an omen for a major shift in 
the perceptions around biotechnology. “Maybe GMOs are just 
becoming too commonplace to compete with climate change for 
the international limelight.”

WG I participants became so oblivious of potential obstacles 
that they fell into procedural traps, adjourning without adopting 
a report. More seriously, one delegate expressed concern that the 
ambition to complete discussions one day ahead of schedule had 
invited the “rather unusual practice of approving draft decisions 
containing unresolved issues.” This was most noted with respect 
to still diverging views on how to address socio-economic 
considerations within the Strategic Plan. In the view of some, the 
issue still merits attention as donor-funded projects have often 
missed the mark when local input with regard to the impacts of 
LMOs is not adequately taken into account.


